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Directors’ Statutory Report

The Directors have pleasure 1n submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of IG Markets
Limsted (the Company or IG Markets) for the year ended 31 May 2013

Principal actwvities

The Company trades as principal and market maker for fareign exchange and contracts for difference {‘CFDs’) in
both the UK and Europe The Company hedges unmatched trades including those for other Group compames, as
considered appropriate, to ensure it 1s not unacceptably exposed to material losses The Company also provides an
IT platform, brokering and market nisk services to other Group companies

The Company s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Market Data Limited and the ultimate parent company 15 |G Group
Holdings ple {IG Group Holdings plc together with all its subsidiary undertakings, “the Group”) The Company 1s
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

Branches outside the United Kingdom

In hine with strategic objectives, the Company has branches in a number of overseas jurisdictions, including Australia
Germany, France, Italy, Spain, Holland, Sweden, Norway and Luxembeourg The branch in Portugal closed during the
year (31 July 2012) and all Portuguese operations were transferred to the branch in Spain

Results
The Company’s profit for the year, after taxation, increased by 11% (2012 6%) to £87 1 milhon (2012 £78 4milhon)

Dividends
No dividends were paid during the year (2012 mil)

Review of business and future developments

Net trading revenue reached £191 6 million (2012 £187 4 million), an increase of 2 2% In the first half of the year a
weak economic backdrop and lack of market volatiity reduced trading volumes, which translated into lower
revenues However the second half of the year saw a number of macro stones emerge which encouraged higher
trading volumes, resulting 1n the small increase in revenue for the year overall

Net trading revenue from the Company’s UK office increased by 4 7% to £120 6 million (2012 £115 2 nullion) UK
office revenue includes the UK and Ireland CFD businesses as well as revenues earned through the provision of an IT
platform, broking services and market risk management services for the Group’s overseas subsidiaries

The year’s profit growth {11%} can be partly attributed to a business model which aligns revenues and costs
Administrative costs decreased by 7% to £84 0 million {2012 £90 7 milion)} This was driven by a £4 9 milhon {91%)
reductton in discretionary staff bonuses as a result of the subdued revenues in the first half of the year

The European segment comprised offtces in Germany, France, Luxembourg, Italy, Spamn, Holland, Sweden and
Norway During the financial year the economic cltmate in Europe continued to weaken, with the corresponding
impact on consumer sentiment making it more difficult to open new accounts and expand in the short-term
However, stronger performance in the second half of the year resulted in the European offices’ net trading revenue
for the year decreasing by only 2% to £71 0 miflion (2012 £72 2 million) Active client numbers grew by 6% across
the European regton in the year

Europe contributed 37% of revenue in the financial year (2012 39%) and, as European markets mature, i1s hikely to
remain a significant contnibutor to revenue growth over the next few years More recently established offices in less
mature markets delivered strong growth, particularly Sweden, where revenues grew 65% The second half of the
year saw the opening of new group offices tn Norway and Ireland, the latter primarily servicing the spread-betting
business

Admunistrative expenses include recharges from a related party (see notes 5, 8 and 28) of £47 8 million (2012 £469
million), an increase of 2%

Operating profit as a result of the above factors increased by 9% to £114 0 million {2012 £104 7 mullion}
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Operating profit i1s used as the primary measure to assess the performance of our business Operating profit for the
UK and Europe for 2013 and 2012 1s as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK  Europe Totat UK Europe Total
Net trading revenue 120,562 71,047 191,609 115,192 72,217 187,409
Operating profit 69,878 44,169 114,047 61,492 43,201 104,693

Shareholders’ equity increased from £253 mullion to £340 milhon as at 31 May 2013

Under normal market conditions, the Directors continue to expect modest growth in revenue for the year as a
whole

Capttal resources

The Company had significant surplus regulatory capital resources over the regulatory capital resources requirement
throughout the year

At the year-end, under FCA rules, the Company’s capital resources exceeded the Piliar 1 capital resources
requirement by 399% (2012 300%) Total regulatory capital rescurces as at 31 May 2013 were £336 1 million (2012
£251 1 milion) An analysis of the Group’s consolidated capital resources and capital resources requirement 1s
provided in the financial statements for IG Group Holdings plc

Directors
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year were as follows

P G Hetherington
T A Howkins
C FHIll

A R MacKay {resigned 31 July 2012)

No Director had any beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company during the year

The ultimate parent company, |G Group Holdings plc, operates long term incentive plans for management, including
the Directors of IG Markets Limited, further described in the financial statements of IG Group Holdings plc

Supplier payment policy and practice

It 1s the Company’s policy to agree terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms for each transaction
and to abide by those terms Standard terms provide for payment of all invoices within 30 days after the date of the
invoice except where different terms have been agreed with the suppher at the outset There are 2 creditor days of
supphers’ invoices outstanding at the year-end (2012 2) for the Company

Risk management

The principal activities of the Company outlined above give nse to exposure to financial and operational risks in the
ordinary course of business These risks are managed on a Group-wide basis as disclosed in the financial statements
of 1IG Group Holdings plc

Effective management of the Group’s and Company’s business risks 15 critical to the successful delivery of its
strategy It 1s imperative that the Group identifies the nature and potential impact of these rnisks, in order to
maintain a nsk-controlled environment throughout the business The Risk Governance Framework sets out the
framework for the Board and executive committees, Non-Executive Director (NED) review, independent control
functions and ongoing business operations that exercise governance over nisk
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Group Risk Appetite Statement and Key Risk Indicators

The Group's Risk Appetite Statement establishes guidelines for nsk management throughout the business The
Group aims te maintain a conservative risk-reward profile, and the Board has developed the Risk Appetite
Statement based on the following four key principles

. The Board will adopt measures to ensure a low level of volatility in revenues and earnings

. The Board will promote orderly business operations to guard against a loss of confidence by shareholders,
chients, employees and business partners

. The Board will adopt measures to rmnimise regulatory nsk

. The Board will review the nsk profile of strategic projects agatnst the nisk profile of the core business

To report the Group’s performance agamnst the Risk Appetite Statement, the Board has implemented a set of Key
Risk Indicators (KRIs) The Board reviews the KRIs in conjunction with the Risk Appetite Statement twice a year
Taken together, the KRIs are a balanced mix of quantitative and qualitative measures that provide an important
indication of increasing or decreasing levels of nsk

Key Risks

The fellowing section describes the key risks that the Group faces and the steps that the Group take in order to
manage these risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk 15 the nisk that a counterparty fails to perform its obligations, resulting in financial loss OQur credit risk 1s
managed on a Group-wide basis The principal sources of credit risk to our business are from financial institutions
and indwvidual clients

Financial Institution Credit Risk

All financial institutions with whom the Group has a relationship are subject to a credit review Exposure limits are
set and approved by the Risk Committee

The Group menitors a number of key metnics on a daily basis in respect of financial institution credit risk, including
balances held, change in short- and long-term credit rating and any change in credit default swap (CDS) price

The Group 15 responsible, under vanous regulatory regimes, for the stewardship of chent monies These
responsibibities include the appotntment and periodic review of institutions where we deposit client money Qur aim
15 that all financial institutions holding client money and the Group’s own cash and assets should have strong short-
term and long-term ratings from the credit rating agencies In some operating junsdictions it can be problematic to
find a counterparty satisfying these requirements, and in these cases we set low exposure imits and seek to use the
best available counterparty — preferably one that 1s considered locally systemic and therefore likely to be supportive
n event of faillure We also maintain multiple brokers for each asset class

All deposits that we place with these institutions are on an overmight or breakable-term basis, which enables us to
react immediately to any downgrade of credit rating status or matenal widemng of CD% spreads We do not have
any deposits of an unbreakable nature or that require notice

Chent Credit Risk

Chent credit nisk principally arises when a chent’s total funds deposited are insufficient to cover any trading losses
incurred In particular, chent credit nsk can anise where there are significant and sudden movements in the market,
due to high general market volatility or specific volatility relating to an instrument tn which the client has an open
position

We mitigate client credit nisk in a number of ways We only accept clients that pass certain suitability criteria, and
our tramming programme aims to educate chents in all aspects of trading and risk management and encourages them
to collateralise their accounts to an appropriate level

We offer a number of nsk management tools that enable clients to manage thetr exposures including guaranteed
and non-guaranteed stops, stop and order limits, the ability to hedge positions, the availability of hiquid, tradable
contracts when underlying markets are closed (e g 24-hour quoted indices} and full trading capability on a wide
range of mobile devices
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In addition, we manage our overall credit risk exposure through real-time monitoring of client positions via our
close-out momtor and through the use of tiered margining

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair vatue of financial assets and financial labilities will change due to movements in
market prices

We manage market risk on a real-time basis, monitoning all chent positions against market risk imits set by the Risk
Committee The Group operates within these mits by hedging our market risk exposure as and when required We
do not take propnietary positions based on the expectation of market movement Our technology enables us to
monitor our market exposure constantly and in real time |f exposures exceed our pre-agreed mits, our rnisk
management policy requires that we hedge the positions to bring the exposure back into line with these limits

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the nisk that we will be unable to meet payment obligations as they fall due

We manage iquidity risk by ensuring that we have sufficient hquidity to meet cur broker margin requirements and
other financial liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions We carried out an ILAA during the
year, and while this applies specifically to the Group’s FCA regulated entities, it provides the context within which
we manage liquidity throughout the business

Due to the very short-term nature of our financial assets and habilities, we do not have any material mismatches in
our hquidity maturity profiles Short-term hquidity ‘gaps’ can arise, however, in special circumstances, due to our
commitment to segregate all individual client funds If there are significant market falls we are required to fund
margin payments to brokers prior to releasing funds from segregation During penods of very high client actvity, or
significant directional movements in global markets, we may be required to fund higher margin requirements with
our brokers to hedge increased underlying chient positions We fund these requirements from our own available
llquidity Post year-end the Group renegotiated its hquidity facilities {see Subsequent Events below)

Operational Risk

Operational risk 1s the nisk of financial loss due to inadequate or failed internal processes and systems |t can also
arise from human error or external events that we cannot influence

Our approach to managing operational risk 1s governed by the Risk Appetite Statement and Risk Management
Framework We have designed and implemented a system of internal controls to manage, rather than eliminate,
operational risk

The rehability of our chent trading platforms 1s key to delwering our strategy, and we invest significantly in [T
infrastructure to ensure that these platforms are resihent On a monthly basis, the Risk Committee reviews our Key
Risk Indicators, which includes monitoring levels of core system uptime and deal latency

To ensure that we provide our clients with a consistent and uninterrupted level of service, we run a complete
disaster recovery solution, which involves a fully-functional secondary site with real-time replication of all systems
across the two locations We support these systems wrth ongoing business continuity planming and regular testing
All our IT and data secunity systems conform to the 1ISO27001 2005 Information Security Management System
standards

Regulatory Risk

The Group regards regulatory nisk as one of our most significant risks In short, we define regulatory risk as the risk
that

. We breach a regulation that applies to our business, leading to sanctions, fines, reputational damage and in
extreme situations, loss of hicence {‘Breach Risk’}

. Qur regulators introduce new regulations that make our business less profitable or impossible (‘Change
Risk’}

. Policy and regulation in jurisdictions in which we don’t operate remain onerous and closed to our business

model, imiting our geographic expansion opportunities (‘Expanston Risk’)

We invest significant ime and resources to manage and control our regulatory nsk More specifically
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Breach Risk

Our comphance, tegal and risk teams provide a robust hine of defence to ensure that our processes and centrols are
effective n ensuring we are complying with our regulatory obligations During the year, the Group has undergone a
number of external reviews into key areas such as chent money, which have provided comfort that we are managing
and controlling this nsk well Obviously, as our business becomes more complex this risk also grows, however the
Group rematns committed to increasing its Investment in Breach Risk controls as the complexity of the business
grows

Change Risk

The regulatory environment continues to evolve and there are currently a number of policy iniiatives and proposals
in development that may impact or have already impacted our sector, as described below

. Financial Transactions Tax (FTT) during the year the Group has seen many developrents in this area, from
the introduction of unitateral FTT regimes in France and Italy, to the attempted Enhanced Cooperation
efforts of the 11 member states wishing to bring in a harmonised FTT with a wide scope The Group has
expended significant efforts throughout the year to both maintain accurate knowledge of the status of these
tax initiatives and to understand the many stakeholders’ interests and views [11s not yet clear where the
Enhanced Cooperation FTT will end up, but The Group are cautiously optimistic that it won't be passed as
originally proposed, and certainly not within the time frame imitially proposed The outcome of an Enhanced
Cooperation FTT 1s very difficult to assess and potentially ranges from extremely negative to mildly positive,
depending on the scope of the tax We continue to monitar developments carefully

. European Markets Infrastructure Regulation the main impact of this legislation on our business 15 increased
reporting requirements to trade repositories Potentially, we will also be impacted by International
Organisation of Securities Commission work on margin for ‘Over-The-Counter” trading but the rules on this
have not yet been settled If these proposals do affect the business it may be some years before any impact
will take effect

. MIFID Ii The Group has continued to moniter developments on this regulatory initiative and remain of the
view that MIEID 1115 unitkely to pose a threat to our UK and European businesses The Group continues to
monitor the situation carefully If these proposals do affect the business it may be some years before any
impact will take effect

. The FCA has indicated it will undertake thematic reviews into conduct, cyber, culture and IT resihience
These matters are under review in the business as a result

We seek to miugate Change Risk by engaging with our regulators and policy makers as much as possible {as part of
policy consultations and more generally), by investing in public relations programmes and by ensuring we have
access to up to date information on regulatory change

Expansion Risk

Like Change Risk, we seek to mitigate Expansion Risk by engaging with regulators and pohicy makers in countnes
where we do not yet operate, but where we would like to Of course, regulatory change can also represent an
opportunity for our business and we are in talks with a number of regulators who are considering changing therr
regulations in order to allow retail derivatives trading These discussions are still at an early stage

In summary, we work closely with our regulators to ensure that we operate to the highest regulatory standards and
can adapt quickly to regulatory change We are committed to engaging proactively with regulators and industry
bodies, and will continue to support changes which promote protection for clients and greater clanity of the risks
they face However, we cannot provide certainty that future regulatory changes will not have an adverse impact on
our business

Employees

The Group takes pride in being an open, non-hierarchical organisation wrth direct and open access amongst alf
teams and at all levels The Chief Executive Officer leads a quarterly management forum which 1s recorded and
broadcast to our overseas offices

Bonus payments are based on a communal poo! driven by both revenue performance against budget and a
scorecard of non-financial measures The poal is first apportioned by department, and then the discretionary
payment i1s distributed to individuals, based upen their performance, by department heads
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The Group’s positive working culture was recognised when IG was named one of Britain’s Top Employers for the
sixth year running in 2013 The Top Employers Certification 1s awarded only to organisations that meet the lighest
standard in Human Resources The award, by the Corporate Research Foundation, was based on a strong
performance in each of the surveyed categories pay and benefits, training and development, corporate culture, and
particularly in career development

Equahty and diversity

The Group 15 an equal opportunities employer and has extensive human rescurce policies in place to ensure that
employees can expect to work 1n an environment free from discrimination and harassment

It is therefore key to the Group's success that it reinforces the need to treat all employees fairly, with dignity and
without any unlawful discrimination |G 18 commutted to creating a work environment free of harassment and
bullying, where everyone 1s treated with dsgnity and respect

The Group gives full consideration to apphcations for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s
particular aptitudes and abilities are consistent with adeguately meeting the requirements of the job Where
existing employees become disabled, it 1s the Group’s polity to provide continuing employment wherever
practicable in the same or alternative position and to provide appropniate training to achieve this aim

Health and safety

The Group believe that their employees are one of its most valuable assets and therefore are committed to
providing each employee with a safe and healthy working environment Health and Safety 1s an integral part of its
business and by providing key members of staff with the relevant external traiming and all other staff with the
relevant n-house training this ensures comphiance with all statutory health and safety requirements Details of all
incidents no matter how small are held on the HR database There were no reportable yncidents in the year

Operations and envircnment

As a business which conducts nearly all of its client trades online, the Group does not see itself as a significant
emitter of environmentally harmfu! substances However, the Group understands that our operations have an
impact on the envirenment and take steps to manage this

Energy consumption and Carbon management

The Group have taken steps to minimise the impact of our offices on the environment These include the instaliation
of automated senseor lighting and air conditiorung, both of which mimimise energy usage when offices are not in use
With the encouragement of employees the Group has also improved our recycling facilities, including IT equipment

Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year-end, in accordance with the phased transfer agreed with the FCA for the Group to hold a
hquid assets buffer of up to £80 0 million by August 2013, the Group has purchased £32 3 million of additional
BIPRU qualifying assets (please refer to note 20 for further details) Following this purchase the Group now holds
£82 7 mullion of BIPRU qualifying assets within the hquid assets buffer

Further, the Group on 19 July 2013 completed the renegotiation of the hiquidity faciities with a syndicate of three
banks In doing so the Group has increased the size of the overall faciity to £200 0 million and established a longer
term hquidity funding arrangement Of the total facility £120 0 milion 1s available for a penad of one year and £80 0
million 1s avallable for three years respectively from the facility signing date

Independent auditors

A resolution to re-appoint the Group's auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM in October 2013

Insurance and indemnities

The Company purchases appropriate liability insurance for all Directors and officers
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Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this report 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information, being information needed by the auditors in cannection with preparing their report, of which the
auditors are unaware Each Director has taken all the steps that he i1s obliged to take as a Director in order to make
him aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis which requires the Directors to have
a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continua in operational existence for the
foreseeable future

The Directors have reviewed the Group's processes to control the financial risks to which the Company 1s exposed,
its available hquidity, its regulatory capital position and the annual budget As a result of this review the Directors
have a reascnable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements

Director

28 August 2013
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they grve a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of
the profit or loss of the company for that period (n preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required
to

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgements and accounting esttmates that are reascnable and prudent,

*  state whether applicable Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s Inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detecuion of fraud and other irregulanties

e the Boa’d

C
Director

28 August 2013




Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of IG Markets Limited

We have audited the financial statements of IG Markets Limited for the year ended 31 May 2013 which compnise
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes tn
Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 9, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing {UX and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person te whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
carcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financtal and non-financial information tn the Annual Report and Financial Statements to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements |f we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

10



Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of IG Markets Limited

Opmnion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

« gwve a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 May 2013 and of its profit and cash
flows for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
*  have been prepared in accardance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Cpimion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion the information given in the Directors’ Statutory Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opimion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
* certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Darren Kettennghabh {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 August 2013
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IG Markets Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 May 2013

2013 2012

Notes £000 £000

Trading revenue 223,599 216,731
Interest Income on segregated client funds 3 6,232 8,030
Revenue 229,831 224,761
Interest expense on segregated chent funds {19) {13)
Introducing broker commussions (31,991) (29,322)
Other operating incocme 4 207 -
Net operating (ncome 198,028 195,426

fa
¥ My
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Administrative expenses {83,981) (90,733)
Operating profit 5 114,047 104,693
Finance revenue ) 1,699 1,839
Finance costs 10 (609) (827}
Profit before taxation 115,137 105,705
Tax expense 11 {28,040) (27,279)
Profit for the year 87,097 78,426

All of the Company’s revenue and profit for the year and prior year relate to continuing operations The Company
has no items of other comprehensive income and therefore a single statement of comprehensive income has been
presented

The notes on pages 16 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements
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IG Markets Limited

Statement of Financial Position

at 31 May 2013
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 453 320
Intangible assets 13 32 14
Investment in subsidiaries 14 3,856 3,856
Deferred tax asset 11 303 239
4,644 4,429
Current assets
Trade receivables 15 286,618 206,860
Prepayments and other receivables 16 58,734 95,030
Cash and short term deposits 17 68,969 209,445
Financial investments 18 50,468 -
464,789 511,335
TOTAL ASSETS 469,433 515,764
Liabilities
Current hrabilhities
Trade payables 19 65,151 104,754
Other payables 20 51,212 145,903
Income tax payable 12,881 12,117
Yotal habihties 129,244 262,774
Capital and reserves
Equity share capital 21 13,000 13,000
Other reserves 22 708 606
Retained earnings 22 326,481 239,384
Total equity 340,189 252,990
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 469,433 515,764

The notes on pages 16 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements

28 August 2013
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IG Markets Limited

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the year ended 31 May 2013

Equrty share Other Retained Total
caprtal reserves earnings equity
£000 £000 £000 £000

{Note 22} {Note 22)
At1June 2011 13,000 427 160,958 174,385
Profit for the year - - 78,426 78,426
Total comprehensive income _ B 78,426 78,426

for the year

Excess of tax deduction benefit
on share-based payments - 4 - 4
recognised directly in equity

Equity-settled employee share-

- - 17
based payments 175 >
Movement in sharehclders _ 179 78,426 78,605
equity
At 31 May 2012 13,000 606 239,384 252,990
Profit for the year - - 87,097 87,097
Total comprehensive iIncome _ _ 87,007 87,097
for the year
Equity-settled employee share- _ 140 _ 140
based payments
Movement in fair value of _ (38) _ (38}
financial iInvestments
Movement in shareholders’ _ 102 87,097 87,199
equity
At 31 May 2013 13,000 708 326,481 340,189

The notes on pages 16 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements
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IG Markets Limited

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 May 2013

2012
£000

104,693

(8,017)
227

24

175

654
1,635
79,820
{42,525)

136,686
(33,190}
7,550
(13)

111,033

1,726
(259)

1,467

(827)

(827)

111,673

98,528
{756)

2013
£000
Operating actwvities Notes
Operating profit 114,047
Adjustments to reconciie operating profit to net cash flow
from operating activities
Net interest income on segregated chent funds (6,213)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5 12 261
| Amortisation of intangible assets 5,13 13
: Equity settled share-based payments 8 140
i Non-cash foreign exchange gains in operating profit (4,189)
Impairment of trade recevables 825
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (56,359}
1 {Decrease} in trade and other payables (119,120)
Other non-cash items 82
Cash {used in)/ generated from operations (70,513)
Income taxes paid (27,096}
Interest receved on segregated client funds 6,502
Interest paid on segregated chent funds (19}
| Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities {81,126)
Investing activities
Interest received 1,801
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (394)
Payments to acquire intangible assets 13 (31)
Purchase of financial investments (50,486}
Net cash {used in})/generated from investing activities (49,110}
Financing activities
Interest paid (609)
Net cash used in financing activities (609)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivolents (140,845)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 208,445
Exchange gain/ {loss) on cash and cash equivalents 369
Net cash and cash equivalents ot the end of year 17 68,569

209,445

The notes on pages 16 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2013

1. Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The financial statements of |G Markets Limited for the year ended 31 May 2013 were authornsed for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 August 2013 and the statement of financial position signed on the Board’s behalf by C F
Hil 1G Markets Limited is incorporated and domiciled wn England and Wales

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as adopted by the EV), IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out in note 2

2. Accounting policies

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the Group to make estimates and judgements that affect the
amounts reported for assets and labilities as at the year-end and the amcunts reported for revenues and expenses
during the year The nature of estimates means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates

In the Directors’ opinion, the accounting estimates or judgements that have the most significant impact on the
measurement of items recorded 1n the financial statements remain the amounts due from chents (refer to note 30),
and the calculation of the Group's current corporation tax charge (refer to note 11)

The judgments in relatian to impairment of trade recervables — amounts due from clients are dependent on historic
levels of repayment and based upon indwvidual circumstances

The calculation of the Group’s current corporation tax charge involves a degree of estimation and judgement with
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with
the relevant tax authonty The Group holds tax provisions in respect of the potential tax hability that may anse on
these unresolved items, however, the amount ultimately payable may be materially lower than the amount accrued
and could therefore improve the overall profitability and cash flows of the Group in future penods

A deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent it 1s considered to be probable that future operating profits will
exceed the losses that have arisen to date

The measurement of the Group's net trading revenue 1s predominately based on quoted market prices {please refer
to note 30 for the financial instrument valuation hierarchy disclosures) and accordingly involves little judgement
However, the calculation of the segmental net trading revenue, as the Group manages risk and hedges on a group-
wide portfolio basis, involves the use of an allocation methodology This allocation methodology does not impact on
the overall Group net trading revenue disclosed

Basis of preparation

The accounting policies which follow have been consistently applied in prepanng the financial statements for the
year ended 31 May 2013 The financial statements are presented in Sterling

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts reported for assets and habilities as at the statement of financial position date and the amounts reported
for revenues and expenses during the year The nature of estimates means that actual outcomes could differ from
those estimates
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IG Markets Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2013

2. Accounting policies (continued )

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis which requires the Directors to have
a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future

Parent company and Group financial statements

The parent company throughout the year was Market Data Limited which s a whelly owned subsidiary of 1G Group
Limited The ultimate parent company is IG Group Holdings plc

The Company 1s exempt under 5400 of the Companies Act 2006 from prepanng group financial statements because
they have been included in the consolidated financial statements of 1G Group Holdings plc, a company incorporated
m the United Kingdom

The financial statements of IG Group Holdings plc and its subsidiary companies, which include the results of IG
Markets Limited, may be obtained from Cannon Bndge House, 25 Dowgate Hill, London ECAR 2YA The Group
financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as
adapted by the EU as they apply to the financial statements of the group for the year ended 31 May 2013 applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Compares Act 2006

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency 1s Sterling  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date
Non-monetary assets and liabilties carried at fair value that are dominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined  Gains and losses arising on translation are
taken to the statement of comprehensive income

Investments in subsidiaries

investments in subsichanes are stated at cost less accumulated imparrment losses

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment
loss Cost compnises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the
asset and includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2013

2. Accounting policies {continued)

Depreciation 15 provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to wnte off the cost, less
estimated residual value based upon estimated useful lives Estimated restdual value and useful lives are reviewed
on an annual basis and residual values are based on prices prevailing at the statement of financial position date
Depreciation 1s charged on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives as follows

. Leasehold improvements - over the lease term of up to 15 years
. Office equipment, fixtures and fittings - over 5 years

. Computer and other equipment - over 2, 3 or 5 years

. Motor Vehicles - over 5 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable and are written down immediately to their
recoverable amount

An tem of property, plant and equipment 15 derecogmised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset The gan or loss arising on derecognition of an asset 1s
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s included in the
statement of comprehensive iIncome in the penod of derecognition

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are carried initially at cost An intangible asset acquired as part
of a business combination 1s recognised outside goodwill if the asset 1s séparable or arises from contractual or other
legal nightts and its fair value can be measured reliably Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets,
excluding development costs, is taken to the statement of comprehensive tncome in the year in which it is incurred
Development expenditure 1s recognised as an intangible asset only after all the following criteria are met

the project’s technical feasibility and commercial viability can be demonstrated,

L the availability of adequate technical and financial resources and an intention to complete the project have
been confirmed, and

. the correlation between development costs and future revenue has been established

Following initial recogmtion, the hustonical cost model is applied, with intangible assets being ca rried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets with a finite Iife are amortised on a straight hine basis over their expected useful lves, as follows

L] Development costs - over 3 years
. Software and licences - over the contract term of up to 5 years
The carrying value of intangible assets 1s reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable In addition, the carrying value of capitalised development
expenditure is reviewed for impairment annually before being brought into use
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2013

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets

At least annually, or when annual impairment testing 1s required, the Directors review the carrying amounts of the
Company's tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have
suffered an imparment loss  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset s estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount i1s the higher of fair value less selling costs and value in use In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate This rate reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money as well as the nisks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset i1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether there 15 any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated A previously recognised impairment loss i1s reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised  If that 1s the case
the carrying amount of the asset 15 increased to its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years A reversal of an impairment loss I1s recogrised as income immediately

Operating leases

Leases are classified as operating leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the asset Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term unless another systematic basis 1s more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit

Financial instruments

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition in accordance with the
categonies outlined below and re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end  When financial nstruments
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, In the case of financial
assets and financial habibties not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs  Financial
instruments are disclosed n note 29 to the financial statements

Financial assets and financial habilties ot fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial habilities classified as held for trading, or designated as such on inception, are included
in this category and relate to trade receivables and trade payables as shown in the statement of financial position
Financial instruments are classified as held for trading of they are expected to settle in the short term The Company
uses derivative financial instruments, in order to hedge exposures resuiting from dervatives with chents, which are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments

All financial instruments at fair value through the profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with gains or losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Determination of fair vaiue

Financial instruments ansing from open chent positions and the Company’s hedging positions are stated at far value
and disclosed according to the valuation hierarchy required by IFRS 7 Fair values are predominantly determined by
reference to third party market values {bid prices for long positions and offer prices for short positions) as detalled
below

tevel 1 Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2013

2. Accounting policies {continued)

Determunation of fair value

Level 2 Valued using techniques where a price i1s derived based significantly on observable market data For
example, where an active market for an identical financial instrument to the product offered by the Group to its
chents or used by the Group to hedge its market risk does not exist

Level 3 Valued using techniques that incorporate information other than observable market data that 1s significant
to the overall valuation

Financial investments

Financial investments are held as available-for-sale and are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified as
held for trading, designated at fair value through profit or foss, or loans and recewvables Financial investments are
recognised on a trade date basis They are initially recognised at fair value plus directly related transactions costs
They are subsequently carned at fair value Fair value 1s the quoted market price of the specific investments held

Financial investments available-for-sale are carried at fair value Unrealised gains or losses are reported in equity (in
the available for sale reserve) and in other comprehenswe income, until such investments are sold, collected or
otherwise disposed of, or until any such investment 1s determined to be impaired On disposal of an investment, the
accumulated unrealised gain or loss included in equity 1s recycled to the income statement for the period and
reported in other mcome Gains and losses on disposal are determined using the average cost method

Interest on financial investments are included 15 included in interest using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial hability When caiculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considening all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but
shall not consider future credit losses The calculation includes alt fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see |AS 18 Revenue), transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts

At the year-end date the Group considers whether there 1s cbjective evidence that a financial investment available-
for-sale s impaired In case of such evidence, it 1s considered imparred if its cost exceeds the recoverable amount
The recoverable amount for a quoted financial investment available-for-sale 1s determined by reference to the
market price A quoted financial investment available-for-sale 1s considered impaired if objective evidence indicates
that the dechne in market price has reached such a level that recovery of the cost value cannot be reasonably
expected within the foreseeable future

if a financial investment available-for-sale 1s determined to be impaired, the cumulative unrealised loss previously
recognised In equity is recycled to profit for the penod and reported in other income

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset or hability 1s generafly derecognised when the contract that gives nise to 1t s settled, sold, cancelted
or expires

Financial assets

A financial asset i1s derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, the Company
retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, or the Company has transferred its rights to
recewve cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset

Where the Company has transferred its nghts to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset s

20




IG Markets Limited
.

Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2013

2. Accounting policies (continued)

recogrised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset  Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a puarantee over the transferred asset 1s measured at the lower of the ornginal carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay

Financial habihities

A financial hability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the lability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires
Where an existing financial habiity 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original hability and the recognition of a new hability, such that the difference in the respective
carrying amounts together with any costs or fees incurred are recognised in profit or loss

Trade receivables and trade payables

Assets or habilities resulting from profit or losses on open positions are carned at fair value  Amounts due from/to
chents and brokers are netted against other assets and habilities with the same counterparty where a legally
enforceable netting agreement is in place and where 1t 1s anticipated that assets and llabilities will be netted on
settlement

Trade receivables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on
account and the valuation of financial derivative open positiens result in an amount due to the Company A
provision for impairment 1s estabhshed where there 1s objective evidence of non-collectability Reference 1s made to
an aged profile of debt and the provision 1s subject to management review

Trade pavyables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on account
and the valuation of financial derivative open positions results in an amount payable by the Company

Prepayments and other receivables

Prepayments and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted tn an active market, do not quabfy as trading assets and have not been designated as fair value through
profit and loss Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method If the time value of
maoney 1s significant Gains and losses are recognised in income when the receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process A provision for impairment 1s established where there is objective
evidence of non-collectability

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits which may be accessed without penalty Cash equivalents
comprise short-term highly hquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value For the purposes of the cash flow statement, net cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

The Company holds money on behalf of clients in accordance with the client money rules of the UK Financial
Conduct Authonity {FCA) and other regulatory bodies  Such monies are classified as either ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ or ‘segregated client funds’ in accordance with the relevant regulatory requirements Segregated client
funds comprise retail chent funds held in segregated chent money accounts or money market facilities Segregated
client money accounts hold statutory trust status restricting the Company’s ability to control the monies and
accordingly such amounts and are not held on the Company's statement of financial position

The amount of segregated client funds held at year-end 1s disclosed in notes 17 and 19 to the financial statements
The return received on managing segregated client funds 1s included within net operating income

Title transfer funds are held by the Company under a Title Transfer Collateral Arrangement (TTCA) by which a client
agrees that full ownership of such monies 1s unconditionally transferred to the Company Title transfers funds are
accordingly held on the Company’s statement of financial position with a corresponding hability to chents within
trade payables
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2. Accounting policies {continued)

Other payables

Non trading financial habilities are recognised initially at fair value and carned at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method  the time value of money is significant

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhgation, and the amount can be
rehably estimated Where matena), provisions are discounted and recognised at the present value of expenditures
expected to settle the obhgation with the unwind of the discount recognised as an interest expense

Taxation
The income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and movements in deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the period Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the statement of comprehensive iIncome because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other periods and it further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible The Company's
liability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date

Deferred tax 1s generally accounted for on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit In
principle, deferred tax habihties are recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available, against which deductible temporary differences
may be utilised

Deferred tax liabilities are recogmised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Company s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to
the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related asset is realised or iability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the statement of financial position date Deferred tax i1s charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive

income, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to equety, in which case the deferred tax s also

dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and hahihities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty
and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Equity shares

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs  Equity
instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into  An equity
instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
habilities

Revenue recognition

Trading revenue represents gatns and lesses ansing on client trading activity primanity in contracts for difference,
binary bets and the transactions undertaken to hedge the nisk associated with client trading activity  Open client
and hedging positions are carried at fair market value and gains and losses ansing on this valuation are recognised in
revenue as well as gains and losses realised on positions that have closed The policies and methodologies
associated with the determination of fair value have been discussed above under Financial Instruments

Revenue i1s recognised when 1t is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

Trading revenue 1s reported gross of introducing broker commission as these amounts are directly inked to trading
revenue Introducing broker commission paid 1s disclosed as an expense in arriving at net operating income

Finance revenue and interest income on segregated chent funds 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable The effective interest rate 1s the rate which
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected Iife of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount Interest income on segregated client funds is disclosed within revenue and therefore operating
profit as this 1s consistent with the nature of the Company’s operations

Net trading revenue, disclosed on the face of the statement of comprehensive income and in the notes to the
financial statements, represents trading revenue from financial instruments carried at fair value through profit and
loss and has been disclosed net of intreducing broker commussion as this 1s consistent with the management
information received by the Chief Operating Decision Maker

Dwvidends recevable are recognised when the shareholder's right to receve the payment s estabhished

Operating profit

Operating profit 1s the resulits of the principal activities of the Company after charging depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, amortisation of intangible assets, impairment of trade receivables, foreign exchange
differences, intercompany recharge of staff costs and other administrative expenses

Finance costs and interest expense on segregated client funds

The interest cost recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income 15 accrued on a time basis by reference to
the principal amount charged at the effective interest rate apphicable The effective interest rate 15 the rate that
exactly discounts the future expected cash flows to the carrying amount of the hability Issue costs are included in
the determination of the effective interest rates

Interest expense on segregated client funds 1s disclosed within operating profit as this 1s consistent with the nature
of the Company’s operations

Retirement benefit costs

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme Contributions are charged in the statement of
comprehensive income as and when they become payable according to the rules of scheme

Share-based payments

The ultimate parent company, IG Group Holdings plc, operates two employee share plans A Value Share Plan (VSP)
and Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIPs) both of which are equity-settled The cost of these awards 1s measured at fair
value based on the market price of IG Group Holdings plc’s shares at the date of the grant and are recognised as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight hne basis over the vesting period based on
estimated number of shares that will eventually vest

At each statement of financial position date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated representing the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and management’s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of
non-market conditions determining the number of equity instruments that will ulumately vest The movement in
cumulative expense since the previous statement of financial position date 1s recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as part of administrative expenses, with a corresponding entry In equity

Dividends

Dwidend distribution to the company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in
the period in which the dwvidends are approved by the Company’s shareholders

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 May 2013
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2. Accounting policies {continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Group has early adopted the following new or amended standards as of 1 June 2012

*  Amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of tems of Other Comprehensive Income” (effective for periods

beginning after 1 July 2012)

Other new standards, amendments and interpretations, including those listed below, have been issued but are
not effective for accounting periods beginning 1 June 2012 and have not been early adopted by the Company

*  IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, 1ssued in November 2009, amended 2010 This standard is the first step in
the process to replace 1A5 39, “Financial Instruments, recognition and measurement” [FRS 9 introduces
new requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets The standard 15 not applicable until 1
January 2015 and has not yet been endorsed by the EU The Group has yet to assess the impact of IFRS 9

*  |FRS 13 “Fair value measurement” {effective 1 January 2013)

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” (effective 1 January 2013)

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” (effective 1 January 2013)
1AS 19 (revised 2011) "Employee benefits” {effective 1 January 2013}

IAS 32 “Financial instruments Presentation” {effective 1 January 2014}

*® & & & 8

January 2013)
*  Amendment to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” (Effective 1 January 2013)

The new standards and amendments above are not expected to have a material impact on the Company

3. Revenue

Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial instruments Disclosures” {effective 1 July 2013)

Amendment to 1AS 28 “investment in Associates and Joint Venturaes” (effective 1 January 2013}
Amendment to IFRS 7 "Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (effective 1

Net trading revenue represents the net trading income from financial instruments carned at fair value through profit

and loss, nat of introducing broker commission Revenue from external customers includes interest income on

segregated client funds and 1s analysed as follows

Net trading revenue

Interest income on segregated chent funds

Revenue from external customers

2013 2012
£000 £000
191,608 187,409
6,232 8,030
197,840 195,439

In addition to the above, Finance revenue Is disclosed in note 9
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4, Other operating income

2013 2012
£000 £000
Inactivity fees™ 207 -
W the year ended 31 May 2013, the Company commenced charging inactivity fees for those accounts on which
clients had not traded for two years
5. Operating profit
2013 2012
£000 £000
This 1s stated after charging/(crediting}
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 261 227
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 24
Operating lease rentals 1,985 2,495
Impatrment of trade receivables 464 1,131
Foreign exchange differences (4,193) {654)
Advertising and marketing 15,044 13,744
Legal and professmnal(ll 4,722 5777

All of the above, except foreign exchange differences are included in the administrative expenses on the statement

of comprehensive iIncome are presented net of recharges from a fellow Group subsidiary Foreign exchange
differences are included in revenue

b Legal and professional fees include costs of £3 4 million (2012 £1 1 million} incurred in defence of claims made in
relation to the insolvency of Echelon Wealth Management Limited Following the closure of this claim against the

Group the plaintiffs have paid a £2 8 million contribution to the Group’s legal costs  This contribution has been
recorded within legal and professional fees

2013 2012
£000 £000
Admunistrative expenses include the following recharges/ (income)
trom a fellow Group subsidiary
Staff costs 37,239 37,629
Operating lease rentals 405 968
IT Mantenance and support 2,305 1,928
Regulatory fees {325) 279
Other 8,191 6,134
Total expenses recharged from a fellow Group subsidiary 47,815 46,938

Refer to notes 8 and 28 for further information regarding recharged expenses included in operating profit
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6. Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees in relation to audit of financial statements of the Company and its branches amounting to £42,000 (2012
£35,000} are borne by a fellow Group undertaking

2013 2012

Audit related fees £000 £000
Fee's payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the 11 7
Company’s financial statements
Statutory and regulatory audit of branches of the Company pursuant 31 28
to legislation
Other assurance services 8 -
Total audit related fees 50 35
Other fees to auditors
Other services relating to taxation

- Compliance-related services 105 100

- Adwisory-related services 13 27
All other services 44 -
Total other fees 162 127

7. Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments represent amounts paid to Directors for services to the Group Only a proportion of these
relate to IG Markets Limited These costs are paid by other group comparies

2013 2012
£000 £000
Salaries and other short term employee benefits 2,149" 3,786
Pension contributions 175" 185
Share-based payments 1,346 1,689
No No
Members of money purchase pension scheme 3 4
2013 2012
£000 £000
Highest paid Director
Emoluments 827 1,234
Pension contributions 64 62

hncludes £140,000 and £21,000 respectively for loss of office for A MacKay (2012 £nil)
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8. Staff costs

The Company has direct employees in its overseas branches The average monthly number of employees during the
year was 72 (2012 73) All employees in the UK are employed by a fellow Group company The staff costs presented
betow are in relation to direct employees only, who are employed in sales and marketing The staff costs for the year
were as follows

2013 2012
E000 £000
Wages and salaries 4,006 7,965
Social security costs 1,117 1,488
Other pension costs 115 76
5,238 9,529

Wages and salares include the following amounts in respect of perfoermance related bonuses, excluding national
insurance, and share-based payments charged to the statement of comprehensive income

2013 2012

£000 £000

Performance related bonuses 454 5,322
Equity settled share-based payments 140 175
594 5,497

Staff costs recharged by the fellow group company for services provided by UK staff amounted to £37,239,000
(2012 £37,629,000)

9. Finance revenue
2013 2012
£000 £000
Bank interest recevable 854 1,184
Interest recewvable on financial investments 20 -
Interest recevable from brokers 825 655
1,699 1,839
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10. Finance costs

Interest payable to clients
Interest payable to brokers
Bank interest payable

Interest paid to a fellow group subsidiary

11. Taxation
{a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Tax charged in the statement of comprehensive income

Current income tax

Corporation tax

Adjustment in respect of prior years

Total current income tax
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences

Tax expense In the statement of comprehensive iIncome

2013 2012
£000 £000
87 187

86 164

. 23

436 453
609 827
2013 2012
£000 £000
27,327 27,489
777 (297)
28,104 27,192
{64} 87
28,040 27,279
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11. Taxation (continued)

{b) Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The rate of corporation tax in the UK changed to 23% during the year ended 31 May 2013 The tax expense in the
statement of comprehensive income for the year 15 different to the weighted average standard rate of corporation
tax n the UK of 23 83% (2012 25 67%} The differences are reconciled below

2013 2012
£000 £000
Accounting profit before taxation 115,137 105,705
Accounting profit multiphed by the UK standard rate of
corporation tax at 23 83% (2012 25 67%) 27,437 27,134
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 744 92
Non-taxable amounts -
Non-payment for group relief {1,550}
Effect of foreign tax rates 682 350
Tax over/{under) provided i previous years 777 {297)
Impact of timing differences not previously recognised {50} -
Total tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income 28,040 27,279

The effective corporation tax rate 1s 24 4% (2012 25 8%)

(9] Deferred income tax assets

The deferred income tax assets included in the statement of financial position are as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 19 204
Other timing differences 284 35
303 239

The movement in the deferred income tax included in the statement of financial position is as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

At the beginning of the year 239 323
Statement of comprehensive income / (charge) 64 {88)
Tax credited directly to equity - 4
303 239
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11. Taxation {continued)

(d) Deferred income tax — statement of comprehensive income charge

2013 2012
£000 £000
The deferred income tax {charge}/credit included 1n the statement of
comprehensive income 15 made up as follows
Decelerated/(accelerated) capital allowances (185) 41
Bad debt provision - 46
Other timing differences 249 -
64 a7
The deferred tax credited to equity during the year 15 as follows
Share-based payments - 4

The effect of the change in UK corporation tax to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 on the deferred tax assets i1s not significant
and 1s included 1n the movements above

(e) Factors affecting the tax charge in future years

Factors that may affect the Company’s future tax charge include the geograph:c location of the Company’s earnings,
the transfer pricing policies, the tax rates in those locations, changes in tax legislation, future planmng opportunities,
the use of brought-forward tax losses and the resolution of open tax 1ssues The calculation of the Company's total
tax charge involves a degree of estimation and judgement with respect to the recognition of deferred tax assets
{refer to note 11(c)) and of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has

been reached with the relevant tax authority The Company holds tax provisions in respect of the potential tax
hability that may anse on these unresclved items, however, the amount ultimately payable may be matenally lower
than the amount accrued and could therefore improve the overall profitability and cash flows of the Group in future
penods

On 1 April 2013 the main rate of corporation tax reduced from 24% to 23% Further reductions to 21% from 1 April
2013 and 20% from 1 Apnil 2015 were enacted on 17 July 2013 when the Finance Act 2013 received Royal Assent
The full impact of the reduction to 20% on the deferred tax assets held at 31 May 2013 1s not expected to be
material The Company will assess the impact of the reductions in line with its accounting pohcy in respect of
deferred tax at each reporting date
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Office
equipment, Computer,
Leasehold  fixtures and and other Motor
improvements fittings equipment Vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1June 2011 469 189 193 - 851
Additions 162 32 40 25 259
Written off (141) - {48) - (189)
At 31 May 2012 490 221 185 25 921
Additions 232 a0 72 - 394
Written off {101) (21) {22} - {144)
At 31 May 2013 621 290 235 25 1,171
Depreciation
At 1June 2011 320 100 143 - 563
Prowided durnng the year 130 a2 a7 8 227
Written off {141) - {48) - {189)
At 31 May 2012 309 142 142 8 601
Provided dunng the year 147 60 46 8 261
Written off {101) (21) (22} - (144)
At 31 May 2013 355 181 166 16 718
Net book value
At 31 May 2013 266 109 €9 9 453
At 31 May 2012 181 79 43 17 320
At 1Jjune 2011 149 89 50 - 288
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13. Intangible assets

Development Software

costs and hcences Total

£000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 June 2011 5 316 321
Additions - . -
Written off - (82) (82)
At 31 May 2012 5 234 239
Additions - 31 3
Written off - (2) (2)
At 31 May 2013 s 263 268
Amortisation
At 1June 2011 s 278 283
Provided during the year - 24 24
Written off - (82) (82)
At 31 May 2012 5 220 225
Provided during the year - 13 13
Written off - 2) {2)
At 31 May 2013 5 231 236
Net book value
At 31 May 2013 - 32 32
At 31 May 2012 - 14 14
At 1)une 2011 - 38 38
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14. Investment in subsidiaries

At cost 2013 2012
£000 £000
At beginning and end of the year 3,856 3,856

The fellowing companies are all owned directly or indirectly by IG Markets Ltd

Proportion
Country of of voting
Name of company incorporation Holding rights held  Nature of business
Subsidiary undertakings held directly
IG Nominees Limited UK Ordinary shares 100% Nominee company
ITS Mark
S Market Solutions UK Ordinary shares 60% Software
Limited
|G Finance 9 Limited UK Ordinary shares 100% Financing
Substdiary undertakings heid indirectly
1G Asia Pte Limited Singapore Ordinary shares 100% CFD trading

IG Nominees Limited and IG Finance 9 Limited are not subject to an audit by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act
2006 relating to subsidiary companies As at 31 May 2013, ITS Market Solutions Limited was in the process of being
Iiquidated

15. Trade receivables

2013 2012

£000 £000

Amounts due from brokers 281,983 204,528
Amounts due from clients 523 624
Other amounts due to the Companym 4,112 1,308
286,618 206,860

“other amounts due to the Com pany represent balances that will be transferred to the Company’s own cash from
segregated chent funds on the immedaately following working day in accordance the UK's Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose jurisdiction the Group operates At 31
May 2013 this also includes amounts due from banking counterparties or held within segregated chent funds in
relation to monies transferred by clients to the Group that remain unsettled at the year-end The Group 1s required
to segregate these client funds at the point of client funding and not at cash settlement
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16. Prepayments and other receivables

2013 2012

£000 £000

Other debtors 940 1,572
Prepayments 1,455 1,490
Amounts due from Group compantes {note 28} 56,339 91,968
58,734 95,030

The amounts due from Group companies are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand

17. Cash and short term deposits

2013 2012
£000 £000
Gross cash and short term de posltsm 444,439 548,436
Less Segregated client funds™ (375,470) (338,991)
Own cash and title transfer funds®™ 68,969 209,445

™ Gross cash and cash equivalents includes the Company’s own cash as well as all client monies held including both
segregated client and title transfer funds

‘”Segregated clent funds compnise retail chent funds held 1n segregated client money accounts or money market
facilities established under the UK’s Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) ‘CASS’ rules and simular rules of other
regulators in whose junsdiction the Company operates Such monses are not included in the Company’s Statement
of Financial Position

B4 tle transfer funds are held by the Company under a Title Transfer Collaterat Arrangement (TTCA) by which a
client agrees that full ownership of such monies 1s unconditionally transferred to the Company

Cash and cash equivalents are deposited for varying penods of between one day and three months depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates

Undrawn committed Group borrowing facilities amounted to £180 Om {2012 £180 Om) at year end On 19 July 2013
completed the renegotiation of the hquidity facilities with a syndicate of three banks In doing so the Group has
increased the size of the overall facility to £200 0 million {see note 32) Company cash was used to purchase
financial iInvestments during the year {see Note 18) and an increase in broker debtors reduced available cash

18. Financial investments

2013 2012
£000 £000
UK Government securnities 50,468 -

All financial investments are shown as current assets as they have a maturity less than one year
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18. Financial investments (continued)

The UK Government securities are held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a “hiquid asset

buffer” against potential iquidity stress under BIPRU 12

The fair value of securities held is based on closing market prices at the year-end as published by the UK Debt
Management Office

19. Trade payables

2013 2012

£000 £000

Amounts due to title transfer clients 18,465 59,852

Intercompany hedging relationship with fellow group subsidianes 45,626 40,079
(note 28)

Other amounts due to clients™ 467 -

Other trade payables 593 4,823

65,151 104,754

“'Other amounts due to chents represent balances that will be transferred from the Company’s own cash into

segregated client funds on the )immediately following working day in accordance wrth the UK’s Financial Conduct

Authority {FCA} ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose jurisdiction the Group operates

20. Other payables

2013 2012
£000 £000
Accruals and deferred income 9,650 12,609
Other taxes and social securnity 55 131
Amounts due to Group companies {note 28) 41,507 133,163
51,212 145,503
21 Equity share capital

2013 2012
£000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
13,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 13,000 13,000
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22. Retained earnings and other reserves

Retained earnings
Retained earnings include profit and losses charged to the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Other reserves
Other reserves include a share-based payments reserve and an available for sale reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the equity contnbution by the ultimate parent company, |G Group

Holdings plc, for the equity-settled share-based payments made by |G Group Holdings plc to employees of the
Company

The Available for Sale {AFS) reserve records movements in the fair value of financial investments (see Note 18)
designated as available for sale, in accordance with 1AS 39

23. Employee share plans

The ultimate holding company, IG Group Holdings plc, operates two employee share plans for the employees of 1G
Markets Limited, a Value-Sharing Plan {VSP) and a Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP} both of which are equity-settled
The final awards made under the LTIP vested on 25 September 2012 The entries in the financial statements in

respect of share-based payments are as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
Equity settled share-based payment schemes 140 175
Expense recharged from fellow subsidiaries 2,082 2,365
Expense recognised in statement of comprehensive income 2,222 2,540

Value Sharing Plan {VSP)

The VSP award was introduced during the year ended 31 May 2011 onwards to replace the LTIP award VSP awards
are conditional awards made avallable to Executive Directors and other semior staff The Remuneration Committee
has responsibility for agreeing any awards under the plan and for setting the pohey for the way in which the plan
should be operated, including agreeing performance targets and which employees should be invited to participate
Participants do not pay to receive awards or to receive release of shares The VSP performance targets vest after 3
years with a pre-defined number of shares allocated, for each £10m of surplus shareholder value created over the
three year pericd above a hurdle Half of the shares vest after 3 years and can be exercised at that date, with the
remaining half being deferred for a further year, conditional upon continued employment at the vesting date  The

VSP is based upon two performance conditions, Tota! Shareholder Return {TSR} and profit before taxation

The maximum number of VSP shares that vest based on the awards made are
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23. Employee share plans (continued)

Share Awarded Lapsed Exercised

price at  Expected At the stort  during the during the during the At the end
Award date award vesting date of the year year year year of the year

Number Number Number Number Number

29 Oct 2010 528 50p 31Jul 2013 29,378 - - - 29,378
29 Oct 2010 528 50p 31Jul 2014 29,378 - - - 29,378
20 July 2011 450 00p 31Jul 2014 66,840 - - - 66,840
20 July 2011 450 00p  31}ul 2015 66,839 - - - 66,839
1 Aug 2012 449 70p  31Jul 2015 - 286,360 - - 286,360
1 Aug 2012 448 70p 31 Jul 2016 - 286,367 - - 286,367
Total 192,435 572,727 - - 765,162

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

LTIP awards were made available to Executive Directors and other sentor staff in the years ended 31 May 2005 to 31
May 2010 which were then replaced by the VSP award

LTIP awards allowed the award of nil cost or nominal cost shares which were legally classified as opttons and vested
when specific performance targets were achieved, conditional upon continued employment at the vesting date For
each award a minimum performance target has to be achieved before any shares vest and the awards vest fully
once the maximum performance target s achieved

The masimum number of LTIP awards that can be exercised are

Share Awarded Lapsed Exercised
price at Expected At the start dunng the during the during the Attheendof
Award date award vesting date of the year year year year the year
Number Number Number Number Number
25 Sept 2009 318 80p 25 Sept 2012 39,039 - {13,304) {25,735} -
Total 39,039 - {13,304) {25,735) -

Fair value of equrty-settled awards

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments to employees 15 determined at the grant date For VSP
awards made under the growth in profit before tax critena, the fair vatue 1s determined to be the share price at the
date of grant after a deduction for the expected present value of future dividends, over the vesting period For VSP
awards made under the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) criteria, fair value 1s calculated using a Monte-Carlo prnicing
model Please refer to the Director's Remuneration report for more information
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23. Employee share plans {continued)

The inputs below were used to determine the fair value of the VSP award i1ssued on 1 August 2012

Share price at grant date (pence}

3 month average market caprtalisation at award date {£m)
Expected life of awards {years)

Risk-free sterling interest rate (%)

1G expected volatility (%6}

Benchmark index expected volatihity (%)

Expected dvidend yield (%)

The weighted average fair values per award granted are as follows

At the Awarded  Lapsed Exercised
beginning during during the during the
of the year the year year year
Year ended 31 May 2013 283 83p 237 15p 276 40p 276 40p
Year ended 31 May 2012 300 11p 260 20p nil 278 25p

24. Obligations under leases

Operating lease agreements where the Company s lessee

449 70
£1,636m
275
013

29

25

46

At the
end of the
year

249 27p

283 83p

The Company has entered into commercial leases on certain properties The lessee has options of renewal on each
of these leases with a notice penod of three months There were no restricttons placed upon the lease by entering

into these leases Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012
Future minimum payments due £000 £000
Not later than one year 675 525
After one year but not more than five years 1,126 1,357
After mare than five years - 7
1,801 1,889

25. Litigation

On the 27 March 2013, the High Court dismissed the claim against 1G Markets Limited, which dated from late 2010,
in relation to the insolvency of Echelon Wealth Management Limited, a former chent of IG Markets Limited No
provision had been made in the Company statement of financial position as at 31 May 2012 Subsequently the
plaintiffs chose not to appeal and have paid a substantial contribution to the legal costs incurred by the Company
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26. Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the year-end but not yet incurred 1s as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

Computer equipment 11 1
Software 57 -
68 1

Capital commitments for non-current assets at 31 May 2013 pnmanly relate to the costs associated with the
provision of software licences for the Company’s European offices

27 Transactions with Directors

The Directors of IG Markets Limited held shares of the ultimate parent company, 1G Group Holdings plc, as disclosed
in the Directors’ report The Company had no other transactions with its Directors other than in relation to the
management of the Company

28. Related party transactions

The Directors are considered to be the key management personnel of the Group 1n accordance with IAS 24 The
total compensation for key management personnel was as follows

2013 2012
£00O £000
Salanes and other short-term employee benefits “’2,149 3,786
Post-employment benefits 75 185
Share-based payments 1,346 1,689
3,670 5,660

Compensation for key management personnel represents amounts paid to Directors for services to the Group Only
a portion of these relate to services to IG Markets Limited

Mincludes £140,000 and £21,000 respectively for loss of office for A MacKay (2012 £nil)
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28. Related party transactions (continued)

Dunng the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with other related
parties Transactions entered into, and trading balances outstanding at 31 May 2013 with other related parties, are

as follows
Expenses Expenses Amounts Amounts
recharged recharged owed by owed to
to related from related related Related
parties parties parties parties
Related party £000 £000 £000 £000
Parent and ultimate controlling party
2013 - - 23,656 -
2012 - - 26,229 -
Fellow Group subsidiaries
2013 - 47,815 32,683 87,133
2012 - 46,938 65,739 173,242
Total Group
2013 - 47,815 56,339 87,133
2012 - 46,938 91,968 173,242

Included within amounts recharged from related parties are staff costs, operating lease rentals, IT Maintenance and
support, regulatory fees and various other costs Refer to notes S and 7 for information regarding these expenses

Included within amounts owed to related parties are trade payables of £45 6 milion {2012 £40 1 million}in
relation te an intercompany hedging relationships with a fellow Group subsidiaries and £41 5 mithon (2012 £133 1
milhon} included within other payables Refer to notes 19 and 20 respectively

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Expenses recharges between related parties are made at arm’s length prices During the year ended 31 May 2013,
the Company has not made any provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties (2012 nil)

Refer to note 10 for information regarding interest paid on amounts owed to related parties
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29, Financial instruments
Accounting classifications and fair values

The table below sets out the classification of each class of financial assets and habilities and their fair values
(excluding accrued interest) The Company considers the carrying value of all financial assets and habilities to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value and represents the Company’s maximum credit exposure without taking
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

‘Cash and cash equivalents' represent cash held on demand and on deposit with financial institutions

‘Trade recewvables - due from brokers’ represent balances with brokers where the combination of cash held on
account {disclosed as loans and receivables) and the valuation of financial derivative open positions (disclosed as
held for trading} results in an amount due to the Company These positions are held to hedge client market
exposures and hence are considered to be held for trading and are accordingly accounted for at fair value through
profit and loss {(FVTPL} These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard
margin trading activities and are reported net In the statement of financial position as the Company has both the
legal right and intention to settle on a net basis

‘Trade recewvables - due from chents’ represent balances owed to the Company by clients Open client positions that
are neither past due nor impaired are disclosed as held for trading, while receivables in respect of closed client
positions are disclosed as loans and recevables

‘Trade payables - due to clients’ represent balances where the combination of client cash held on account {disclosed
as loans and recewvables) and the valuation of financial derivative open positions {disclosed as held for trading)
results in an amount payable by the Company Trade payables — due to chents are reperted netin the Company's
Statement of Ftnancial Position as the Company ad)usts the gross amount payable to chients {1e monies held on
behalf of chents} for profits or losses incurred on a daily basis consistent with the legal nght and intention to settle
on a net basis

‘Financial investments’ represent UK government securities held by the Company in satisfaction of the FCA
requirements to hold a Liquid Assets Buffer against potential hquidity stresses (see note 18} They are accounted for
as avallable for sale assets
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

Classification of financial instruments
Available

FVTPL- Other Total
for sale
Held for Loans ond  amortised carrying Fair
trading recewvables cost amount vaiue
As at 31 Moy 2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 68,969 - - 68,969 68,969
Financial investments - - - 50,468 50,468 50,468
Trade recewvables — due . _ )
(to)/from brokers
Non-exchange traded (1,071) 188,740 - - 187,669 187,669
instruments
Exchange-traded instruments (826) 95,140 - - 94,314 94,314
Total trade recewvables — due (1,897) 283,880 ) ) 281,983 281,983
{to)/ from brokers
Trade recewvables — due from } 523 ) ) 523 523
clients
Trade recewables — other ) 4,112 ) ) 4,112 4,112
amounts due from clients
(1,897) 357,484 - 50,468 406,055 406,055
Financial habilities
Trade payables — due to title -
transfer chents - - {18,465) (18,465) (18,465}
Trade payables — other -
amounts due to clients i (467) ) (467) (467)
- {467) {18,465} - {18,932} (18,932)

Excluded from the financial assets classified as ‘loans and recewables’ are amounts due from Group companies
£56 3 million {2012 £92 0 mullion) Refer to notes 16 and 28

Excluded from the financial iabilities classified as ‘other amortised cost’ are amounts due to Group companies £87 1
miflion {2012 £173 2 million} Refer to notes 19, 20 and 28
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

FVTPL- Other Total
Held for Loans and amortised carrying Fair
trading  recevables cost amount value
As at 31 May 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 209,445 - 209,445 209,445
Trade receivables — due from
brokers
-exch
Non-exchange traded (6,244) 173,640 - 167,39 167,396
instruments
Exchange-traded (4,599) 42,131 . 37,532 37,532
instruments
| -
Total trade recevables — due (10,843) 215,771 ) 204,928 204928
from brokers
Trade recewvables — due from ) 624 i 624 624
chents
Trade receivables — other A 1,308 i 1,308 1,308
amounts due from chents
{10,843} 427,148 - 416,305 416,305
Financial liabilities
Trade payables — due to title . ) (59,852) (59,852) (59,852)
transfer clients
- - (59,852) (59,852) (59,852)

Financial nstrument valuation hierarchy

The hierarchy of the Company’s financial mstruments carried at fair value 1s as follows

tevel 1™ tevet 2% tevei 3™ Total fatr value
As at 31 May 2013 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Financial investments 50,468 - - 50,468
Trade recewvables — due from brokers {826) {1,071) - {1,897)

m Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments  This category

includes the Company’s exchange-traded open hedging positions

12 Valued using techmiques where a price 1s derived based significantiy on observable market data For

example, where an active market for an identical financial instrument to the product offered by the Company to its
clhents or used by the Company to hedge its market nsk does not exist

# Valued using techniques that incorporate information other than observable market data that 1s significant

to the overall valuation

The amounts due from brokers disclosed in the table above represents the fair value of the Company’s open hedging
positions The fair value of the Company’s open hedging position varies significantly from the fair value of the
related client positions as a result of the Company’s settlement terms with its brokers whereby hedging positions are
settled and re-opened on a more frequent basis than the underlying chent position
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

There have been no changes in the valuation techmques for any of the Company’s financial instruments held at fair
value in the period During the year ended 31 May 2013, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 farr
value measurements, and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements

Reconciliation of the movement in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy

Gains or
At 1 lune losses in Closed At 31 May
2012 revenue'™ positions @ Tronsfers 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Financial habilities
Trade payables — due to chients ; 11,678 {11,678} - -

w Disclosed in trading revenue in the statement of comprehensive Income  This represents chient positions

that have closed in the pericd as well those open at the period end

@ Value of client positions that have settled in the period

@ Value of open client positions at the penod end disclosed in trading revenue in the statement of

comprehensive iIncome

The tmpact of a reasonably possible alternative valuation assumption on the valuation of trade payables - due to
clients reported within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy 1s not significant

Items of income, expense, gains or losses

Gains and losses ansing from financial assets and habilmes classified as held for trading amounted to net gains of
£191 6 milhon (2012 £187 4 million)

Finance revenue totalled £1 7 million {2012 £1 8 million} The entire amount represents interest income on
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss and includes interest recevable in respect of non-segregated
chent balances, part of which 15 held with brokers

Finance costs totalled £0 6 milien {2012 £0 8 million) and the entire amount represents interest expense on
financial habilities not at fair value through profit or loss

30. Financial risk management

The principal activittes of the Company outlined in the Directors’ Report give rise to exposure to financtal nsks in the
ordinary course of business Risk management s performed on a Group-wide basis The following risk management
disclasure 1s made with regards to the Group

The Group's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) provides an on-going assessment of the nisks the
Group believes have the potential to have a significant detrimental impact on its financial performance and future
prospects and describes how the Group mitigates these risks subject to the Group’s nsk appetite

The Board sets the strategy and policies for the management of these nsks and delegates the management and
mornutoring of these risks to the Risk and Audit Commuttees

Financial nsks ansing from financial mstruments are analysed into market, credit, concentration and liquidity nisks,
and these are discussed below
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30 Financial risk management {continued)
{1} Market nsk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in market prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments This is analysed into market price, currency and interest rate risk components

The Company’s market risk 1s managed under the ‘Market Risk Policy’ on a group-wide basis and exposure to
market nisk at any point in time depends primanly on short-term market conditions and the levels of chent activity
The Company utilises market position imits for “operational efficiency” and does not take proprietary positions
based on an expectation of market movements As a result not all net chent exposures are hedged and the Company
may have a residual net position in any of the financial markets in which it offers products up to the market risk

hirmit

The Group’s Market Risk Pclicy incorporates a methodology for setting market position limits, consistent with the
Group’s nsk appetite, for each financial market in which the Group’s chents can trade, as well as certain markets
which the Board consider to be correlated These imits are determined with reference to the liquidity and volatility
of the underlying financial product or asset class and represent the maximum long and short client exposure that
the Group will hold without hedging the net client exposure

The Group's real-time market position monitoring system allows 1t to monitor its market exposure against these
himits continuously If exposures exceed these limits, the policy requires that hedging 1s undertaken to bring the
exposure back within the defined limit

There 15 a significant level of ‘natural’ hedging ansing from the Group’s global client base pursuing varying trading
strategies which results in a significant portfolio hedging effect This reduces the Group's net market exposure prior
to the Group hedging any residual net chient exposures, as well as minimising concentration risk within the market
risk portfolio

Where the Group has residual positions in markets for which it has not been possible or cost-effective to hedge, the
Risk Committee determines the approprate action and reviews these exposures regularly, subject to the nisk
management framework approved by the Board

Binary bets are typscally difficuit or not cost-effective to hedge and there 1s often no direct underlying market which
can be utilised In setting the price which the Group quotes The Group normally undertakes no hedging for these
markets, but can hedge specific positions if considered necessary The Group aims to reduce the volatility of revenue
from these markets by offering a large number of different betting opportunities, the results of which should, to
some extent, offset each other irrespective of the underlying market outcome The overwhelmingly short-term
nature of these bets means that nisk on these markets at any point in time 1s not considered to be significant

a) Market price risk

This s the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument fluctuates as a result of changes in market prices other
than due to the effect of currency or interest rate risks

Equity market price nisk

The most significant market risk faced by the Company 1s on equity positions including shares and indices which are
highly correlated and managed on a portfolio basis The equity exposure at the year-end and detalls of the exposure
lim1t at the year-end and for the year then ended 15 as follows
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2013 2012
£000 £000
Equity exposure at year-end 16,459 16,535
Equity exposure hmit at year-end 16,500 16,500
Average equity exposure hmit for the year 16,500 16,500

The Group’s market risk policy requires that when the exposure exceeds the exposure limit hedging i1s undertaken to
bring the exposure back within that imit as soon as practical

The Company has no significant concentration of market risk

No sensitivity analysis 1s presented for equity market price nsk as the impact of reasonably possible market
movements on the Group’s revenue and equity are not significant being below the Company's average daily revenue
from financial instruments {2013 £734,130, 2012 £715,302) Changes in risk vanables have no direct impact on the
Company’s equity as the Company has no financial instruments classified as available for sale, or designated in
hedging relaticnships

Other market price risk

The Company also has market price risk as result of its trading actwities {offering bets and contracts for difference
(CFDs} on interest rate derivatives and commodities) which i1s hedged as part of the overall market risk
management The exposure 1s monitored on a Group-wide basis and 1s hedged using exchange-traded futures and
options Exposure hmits are set by the Risk Committee for each product, and also for groups of products where it (s
considered that their price movements are hikely to be positively correlated

The exposure to interest rate derwatives and commaodities at the year-end are as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
Interest rate derivatives {2,492} 11,278
Commodities {6,177} 6,717

No sensitivity analysss 1s presented for other market price risk as the impact of reasonably possible market
movements on the Company’s revenue are not significant Changes in risk vanables have no direct impact on the
Company’s equity as the Company has no financial instruments designated in hedging relationships

b} Foreign currency risk
The Group 1s exposed to two sources of foreign currency nsk
1) Translational foreign currency nsk

Translation exposures arise from financial and non-financial tems held by an entity with a functional currency
different from the Group's presentation currency The functional currency of each company in the Group 1s that
denominated by the country of incorporation The Group does not hedge translational exposures as they do not
have a significant impact on the Group’s capital resources
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11) Transactional foreign currency nsk

Transactional foreign currency exposures represent financial assets or habilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the transacting entity Transaction exposures arise in the normal course of business
and the management of this nisk forms part of the risk policies outhined above Limits on the exposures which the
Group will accept in each currency are set by the Risk Committee and the Group hedges its exposures as necessary
with market counterparties Foreign currency nsk Is managed on a group-wide basis, while the Company’s exposure

to foreign currency risk 1s not considered by the Directors to be significant

The Group monitors transactional foreign currency risks including currency statement of financial position

exposures, equity, commedity, interest and other positions denominated in foreign currencies and bets and trades
on foreign currencies The Company’s net exposure to foreign exchange nisk based on notional amounts at each

year-end was as follows

US Dollar

Euro

Austrahan Dollar
Yen

Other

No sensitivity anatysis 1s presented for foreign exchange nisk as the impact of reasonably possible market

2013
£000

577
3,026
(1,799}
231
(6,290}

2012
£000

2,773
{8,037}
(5,348}

39

4,046

movements on the Company's revenue are not significant Changes in risk variables have no direct impact on the

Company's equity as the Company has no financial instruments designated in hedging relationships

¢} Non-trading interest rate risk

The Company also has interest rate risk relating to financial instruments not held at fair value through profit and

loss These exposures are not hedged

The interest rate nisk profile of the Company’s financial assets and habihties as at 31 May each year was as follows

Fixed rate
Financial investments

Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Trade payables

All balances presented in the table above are repayable within one year

2013 2012
£000 £000
50,468 -
68,969 209,445
286,618 206,860
{65,151} (104,754)
340,904 311,551
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Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate 15 re-priced at intervals of less than one year Trade
recevables and payables include client and broker balances upon which interest i1s paid or received based upon
market rates Cash and cash equivalents includes client money equivalent to the amount included within trade
payables

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

A non-traded interest rate nisk sensitivity analysis has been performed on net interest income on segregated chent
funds, based on the value of client funds held at the year-end, on the basis of a 0 25% (2012 0 25%) per annum fall
and a 0 5% (2012 0 75%) nise in interest rates, at the beginning of the year, as these are considered ‘reasonably
possible’ The impact of such a fall in interest rates would reduce net interest income on segregated client funds by
approximately £2 4 milion (2012 £2 0 million} per annum The impact of such a rise in interest rates would
increase net interest income on segregated citent funds by approximately £4 2 million {2012 £5 5 million} per
annum Changes In risk vanables have no direct impact on the Company’s equity as the Company has no financial
instruments designated in hedging relationshsps

(ti) Credit nsk

Credit nisk 1s the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation The Company's credit risk 1s managed on a group-wide basis

The Company’s principal sources of credit nisk are financial institution and client credit risk
a) Financral institution credit risk
Financial nstitution credit nisk 1s managed 1n accordance with the Group’s ‘Counterparty Credit Management Policy’

Financial institutional counterparties are subject to a credit review when a new relationship is entered into and this
15 updated semi-annually (or more frequently as required e g on change in the financial institution’s corporate

structure or a downgrading of its credit rating) Proposed maximum exposure limits for these financial institutions
are then reviewed and approved by the Risk Committee

As part of its management of concentration risk, the Group ts also committed to maintaining multiple brokers for
each asset class Where possible, the Group negotiates for its funds to receive client money protection which can
reduce credit exposure

In respect of financtal institution credit risk, the following key metrics are monitored on a daily basis
*  Balances held with each counterparty group, against hmits approved by the Risk Committee
*  Any change in short- and long-term credit rating

*  Anychange tn credit default swap (CDS) price

The Group 1s responsible under vanous regulatory regimes for the stewardship of client monies These
responsibilities are defined in the Group's Counterparty Credit Management Policy and include the appointment of
and penodic review of institutions with which client money 1s deposited  The Group’s policy 1s that all financial
nstitutional counterparties holding client money accounts must have minimum Standard and Poor’s short- and
long-term ratings of A-2 and A- respectively These are also the target minimum ratings for the Group's own bank
accounts held with financial institutions, although in some operating junsdictions where accounts are maintained to
provide local banking facilities for clients it can be prablematic to find a banking counterparty satisfying these
minimum ratings requirements Balances held with such counterparties are therefore minimised The Group also
actively manages the credit exposure to each of its broking counterparties by typically keeping the minimum
required balances at each broker
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In addition, the majonty of deposits are made on an cvernight or breakable term basis which enables the Group to
react immediately to any downgrading of credit rating or material widening of CDS spreads, and deposits of an
unbreakable nature or requiring notice are only held with a subset of counterparties which have been approved by
the Risk Committee

b} Chient credit risk

The Group operates a real-time mark-to-market trading platform with client profits and losses being credited and
debited automatically to their account

Client credit risk principally arises when a client’s total funds deposited with the Group are insufficient to cover any
trading losses incurred In addition, a small number of clients are granted ¢redit hmits to cover open losses and
margin requirements as described below

In particular, chent credit risk can arise where there are significant, sudden movements in the market 1 e due to high
general market volatility or specific volatihty relating to an individual financial instrument in which the client has an
open position  Credit risk s mitigated in part through our chent suitability criteria supported by an extenstve
traiming program which aims to educate clients in all aspects of trading and risk management and encourage them
to collateralise their accounts at an appropriate level

The principal types of client credit risk exposure are managed under the Group’s ‘Chent Credit Management Policy’
and depend on the type of account and any credit offered to clients as follows

Chents subject to the Group's ‘close-out monitor’

The Group’s management of chent credit risk 15 supported by a significantly automated liquidation process, the
‘close-out monitor’ (COM), whereby accounts which have broken the iquidation threshold are automatically
dentified If the margin of a chent which is subject to COM hquidation process 1s eroded, the chent 1s requested to
deposit additional funds up to at least the required margin level and will also be restricted from increasing their
market positions If subsequently, the client’s intra-day losses increase such that their total equity falls below the
specified hquidation level, positions will be hquidated immediately This results in significantly improved chent
hquidation times and reduced credit risk expasure for the Group

In addition a subset of chients has what are known as “Limited Risk” accounts For such accounts a level 1s set in
advance (the "guaranteed stop” level} at which the deal will be closed, meaning a maximum client loss can be
calculated at the opening of the trade Clients placing trades with guaranteed stop levels pay a small premium on
each transaction The maximum loss is then the amount the chient is required to deposit to open the trade, meaning
that in most circumstances the chent can never lase more than their imitial margin depost  Although no longer
offered to new clients, the Group still has a significant number of clients with this type of account  This type of
account results in the transfer of an element of market risk to the Group, which 1s managed under the Group's
Market Risk Policy, and this type of trade is not available on ali products Clients with any type of account may stil|
choose to use guaranteed stops where avatlable

The majority of chent positions are monitored on the Group’s real-time COM system or are hmited risk accounts
with guaranteed ‘stop-losses” As at 31 May 2013, 98 83% (2012 98 92%) of financial client accounts are subject to
the automatic COM procedure or are ‘limited risk’ accounts

Credst accounts

Clents holding other types of accounts are permitted to deal in circumstances where they may be capable of
suffering losses greater than the funds they have deposited on their account, or in hmited ¢ircumstances are allowed
credit The Group has a formal credit pohcy which determines the financial and experience criteria which a chent
must satisfy before being given an account which exposes the Group to credit risk, including trading imits for each
chent and strict margining rules

The Group may offer credit hmits with the result any ‘open loss’ can be paid subject to agreed credit terms These
accounts typically only create a credit exposure when the client’s loss exceeds their initial margin deposit
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In addition to the waiver of payment of open losses on a trade, the Group may also offer clients credit in respect of
therr imtial margin - This 1s a permanent waiving of initial margin requirements while the mit 1s active on the
account subject to the credit hmit

Credit imits are only granted following provision by the client of evidence of their available financial resources and
credit accounts imits are continuously reviewed by the Group’s Credit Department Credit accounts are smallin
number, are not actively promoted and in general they are not made available to new chents

Risk-based tiered margins

The Group applies a tiered-margin requirement for equities and other mstruments with risk-adjusted margin
requirements dependent on several factors including the volatiity and iquidity of the underlying instrument

This has resulted in potential margin requirement of up to 90% of the value of the notional client position for large
chent positions but a reduced margin requirement for smaller cirent positions

These tiered margins, in addition to the COM discussed earlier, contribute to the further mitigation of the Group's
client counterparty credit nsk exposure

Management of client coliateral

Previously the Group accepted non-cash collateral from chients in the form of shares or other securities which
mitigate the Group's credit risk In these arcumstances, chents retained title to the secunities lodged whilst their
trading account was operating normally, but were required to sign a collateral agreement which would allow the
Group to take title and sell the securities in the event of the client defaulting on any margin obligations During the
financial year the Group ceased accepting collateral from clients

Credit risk

The following tables present further detail on the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk External credit
ratings are available for exposures to brokers and banks, and these are shown No external credit rating of chents
and certain of the Group’s sport related brokers 1s available and therefore the balances are classified as unrated

Amounts due from chents are considered past due from the date that positions are closed and are aged from that
date If debtors arise on open positions the amounts due from clients are considered neither past due nor impaired
unless impairment 1s provided

The analysis of neither past due nor impaired credit exposures in the following table excludes retail chent funds held
in segregated client money accounts or money market faciities established under the UK’s Financta! Conduct
Authornity {FCA) ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junsdiction the Group operates Under
these rules, chient money funds held with trust status are protected in the event of the insolvency of the Group
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The anatysis of neither past due nor impaired credit exposures in the following table excludes retail client funds held
in segregated chent money accounts or money market facilities established under the UK’s Financial Conduct
Authority {FCA) ‘CASS’ rules and simular rules of other regulators in whose junsdiction the Group operates Under
these rules, client money funds held with trust status are protected in the event of the insolvency of the Group

Trade receivables - due  Trade receivables - due Cash and cash Collateral held ot fair
from brokers from chents equivalents value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross exposure - - 7,462 10,083 - - -
Allowance for imparrment - - {7,233) {9,716} - - - -
- - 229 367 - - - -
Past due but not impaired
Ageing profile - - - - - - - -
0-3 months - - 103 126 - - - -
4-6 months - - 0 - - - - -
7-9 months - - - - - - -
10-12 months - - 0 - - - -
> 12 months - - 17 - - - -
- - 123 126 - - - -
Neither past due nor impaired
Credit rating
AA+ B above - - - - - - 1,152
AA 1O AA- 61,104 54,839 - - 5,182 103 - -
A+ to A- 218,402 149,180 - - 63,588 208,912 - 563
BBB+ to BBB- - - - - 19 121 - 885
BB+to B - - - - 1 220 - -
CccC - - - - - 16 - -
Unrated 1,477 909 171 131 179 73 - 1,264
281,983 204,928 171 131 68,969 209,445 - 3,864
Total carrying amount 281,983 204,928 523 624 68,969 209,445 - 3,864

51




IG Markets Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2013

30. Financial risk management (continued)
Prepayments and other receivables are all unrated {2012 all unrated)

impairment of trade receivables due from chents

The Company records specific impawrments of trade receivables due from clients in a separate allowance account

Impairments are recorded where the Group determines that it 1s probable that it will be unable to collect all

amounts owing according to the contractual terms of the agreement There are no collective impairments taken,
and no other assets are considered impaired Below I1s a reconciliation of changes in the separate allowance account

during the pernod

2013 2012

£000 £000
Balance at beginning of year 9,716 9,961
Impairment loss for the year
- charge/ (credit) for the year 778 1,635
- recoveres {361) {576)
Foreign exchange 1,186 {637)
Wnite-offs {4,086) {667)
Balance at end of year 7,233 9,716

() Concentration risk

Concentration risk 1s defined as all sk exposures with a loss potential which 1s large enough to threaten the

solvency or the financial position of the Group In respect of financial nisk, such exposures may be caused by credit

risk, market nsk iquidity or a combination or interaction of those risks

The following table analyses the Group’s credit exposures, at thewr carrying amounts, by geographical region and
excludes retail chent funds held in segregated chent money accounts or money market facilities established under
the UK's Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junsdiction the

Group operates

Analysis of credit exposures at carrying amount by geographical segment

Rest of

UK Europe Austraha World Total
As at 31 May 2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 60,594 2,521 5,182 672 68,969
Financial investments 50,468 - - - 50,468
Trade receivables — due from brokers 96,244 80,092 53,026 52,618 281,983
Trade receivables — due from clients 77 156 78 212 523
Total financial assets 207,383 82,769 58,2856 53,502 401,943
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Rest of

Uk Europe Australia World Total
As at 31 May 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 157,642 51,713 76 14 209,445
Trade recevables ~ due from brokers 71,163 71,306 20,741 41,718 204,928
Trade receivables - due from clients 263 141 111 109 624
Total financial assets 229,068 123,160 20,928 41,841 414,997

{in} Liguidity risk

Liquichty nisk 1s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations ansing from its financial
liabilties that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets

Management of hquidity risk

Liguidity nisk 1s managed centrally and on a group-wide basis The Group’s approach to managing hiquidity 1s to
ensure 1t will have sufficient hquidity to meet its broker margin requirements and other financial labilities when
due, under both normal circumstances and stressed condrtions The Group has carried out an Individual Liquidity
Adequacy Assessment {“ILAA”) duning the year, and whilst this applies specfically to the Group's FCA regulated
entities, it provides the context (n which hquidity 1s managed on a continuous basis for the whole Group

The Group does not have any materal iquidity mismatches with regard to iquidity maturity profiles due to the very
short-term nature of its financial assets and habilittes  Liguidity nisk can, however, anise as all individual client funds
are required to be placed in segregated client money accounts or money market facilities (as previously discussed)
A result of this policy 1s that short-term hquidity ‘gaps’ can potentially anse 1n periods of very high chent activity or
sigruficant increases or falls in global financial market levels

Dunng penods of significant market falls the Group will be required to fund margin payments to brokers prior to the
release of funds from segregation, and in periods of significant market increases or increased client activity, the
Group will be required to fund higher margin requirements at brokers to hedge increased underlying client
positions These additional requirements are funded from the Group’s own available cash resources while these
indwidual client positions are open, as individual client funds remain in segregated client money bank accounts

In order to mitigate this and other hquidity rnisks, the Group regularly stress tests its three-year iquidity forecast to
validate the correct level of committed unsecured bank facilities held At the year-end, these amounted to £180 0
million (2012 £180 0 million) These facilities were drawn to a maximum of £25 0 mitlion for a penod of 22 days in
Apnl 2013 where the broker margin requirement reached a maxtimum level of £294 7 million and the Group held a
hquid assets buffer of £50 5 miilion Other than for testing purposes these facilities were not drawn upon during the
prior financial year On 19 July 2013 the Group completed the renegotiation of the hquidity facilities with a
syndicate of three banks In doing so the Group has increased the size of the overall facility to £200 0 milhon {2012
£180 0 milhon) and established a longer term liquidity funding arrangement Of the total facility £120 0 million is
available for a period of one year and £80 0 million 1s available for three years respectively from the facibity signing
date

‘Liquid assets’” and ‘own funds’ are the key measures the Group uses to monitor the overall level of liquid assets
available to the Group The derivation of both liquid assets and own funds I1s shown in the following table
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2013 2012

£000 £000
Own cash and title transfer funds'” 98,345 228,156
Amounts due from brokers'® 283,940 206,997
Financial investments — hquid assets buffer™ 50,468 -
Other amounts due to the Group'” 15,003 12,920
Liquid assets 447,756 448,073
Analysed as
Own funds 429,291 388,221
Title transfer funds 18,465 59,852

The following notes have been provided in order to further explain the derivation of hiquid assets and own funds
of the Group

Y 9wn cash and title transfer funds represent cash held on demand with financial institutions

% Amounts due from brokers represent balances with brokers where the combination of cash held on account and
the valuation of financial denivative open positions results in an amount due to the Group These positions are held
to hedge client market exposures in accordance with the Group's market nsk management

®)Einancial investments represent UK Government Treasury Bills and Gilts held in accordance with the BIPRU 12
lquidity standards and the Group’s regulatory oversight by the FCA This i1s the Group's liquid assets buffer

“0ther amounts due to the Group include balances that will be transferred to the Group’s own cash from
segregated client funds on the following working day in accordance with the UK’s Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)
‘CASS5’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose jurisdiction the Group operates At 31 May 2013 this also
includes amounts due from banking counterparties or held within segregated client funds in relation to monies
transferred by clients to the Group that remain unsettled at the year-end The Group is required to segregate these
chent funds at the point of client funding and not at cash settlement

In the Directors’ opinion the Company has sufficient iquid funds available to meet all operatianal requirements in
the event of a large market movement Liquidity management is also dependent on credit risk management
previously described

Liguidity requirements

The Group requires liquidity for each of, the full segregation of chent monies, the funding of regulatory and working
capital in overseas businesses, the funding of margin requirements at brokers to hedge the underlying client
positions under both normal and stressed conditions, the funding of a hquid assets buffer, and amounts associated
with general working caprtal

The available hquid assets measure excludes cash amounts tied up in both the requirement to segregate client funds
and tn regulatory and working capital of overseas businesses as they are not considered to be available for the
purposes of central market rnisk management
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Caprtal management

The Group 1s supervised on a consolidated basis by the UK’s Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) The Group's
subsicharies in Australia, Japan, Singapore, South Africa and the United States, are also regulated Individual capital
requirements In these furisdictions are taken into account when managing the Group's capital resources

The Group's regulatory capital resources management obyective 15 to ensure that the Group complies with the
regulatory capital resources requirement set by the FCA and other global regulators in junisdictions in which the
Group's entities operate

The Group’s capital management policy aims to maximise returns on equity while maintaiming a strong capital
position to enable the Group to take advantage of growth opportunities, whether organic or by acquisition The
Group does not seek to generate hugher returns on equity by introducing leverage through, for example, the use of
long-term debt finance

The Group's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process {ICAAP) provides an on-going assessment of the nisks the
Group believes have the potential to have a significant detnmental impact on its financial performance and future
prospects and describes how the Group mitigates these risks subject to the Group’s nisk appetite

The Group's ‘Pillar 3 Disclosures’ are published on 1ts website www igeroup com and these provide additional
information on the Group’s enterprise-wide risk management framework and its management of regulatory capital
on a conschdated and solo entity basis

Capital resources
The Group had significant surplus regulatory capital resources over the regulatory capital resources requirement

throughout the year An analysis of the Company’s capital resources and capital resources requirement 1s provided
in the Directors’ statutory report

32. Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year-end, in accordance with the phased transfer agreed with the FCA for the Group to hold a
hquid assets buffer of up to £100 0 million by August 2013, the Company has purchased £32 3 millicn of additional
BIPRU qualifying assets Following this purchase the Company now holds £83 1 million of BIPRU qualifying assets
within the hquid assets buffer

Further, on 19 July 2013 the Campany and 1G Index (a fellow group subsidiary) completed the renegotiation of the
hquidity facilities with a syndicate of three banks In doing so the Company and its fellow subsidiary has increased
the size of the overall facility to £200 0 million and established a longer term hquidity funding arrangement Of the
total facity £120 0 million 1s available for a peniod of one year and £80 0 million is available for three years
respectively from the facihty signing date

33. Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party
The immediate parent undertaking 1s Market Data Limited

The ulumate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s IG Group Holdings plc, a company incorporated in the
United Kingdom

1G Group Holdings plc 1s the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial
statements at 31 May 2013 The consolidated financial statements of IG Group Holdings plc are available from
Canncn Bnidge House, 25 Dowgate Hill, London EC4R 2YA
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